FISCAL YEAR 2024

EARLY RETIREMENT GUIDE

TO THE OPEN ENROLLMENT PERIOD (FOR PARTICIPANTS UNDER AGE 65)



LETTER FROM THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER

Dear Retirees:

As we emerge from the pandemic, let's get back to the basics and schedule our preventive care appointments for ourselves and our families. It is these actions that make us a healthier and happier Alexandria!

We are pleased to announce the Fiscal Year 2024 Open Enrollment for the City's Non-Medicare eligible retirees will begin <u>Monday, May 8, 2023</u>, and end on <u>Friday, May 26, 2023</u>. All changes made during Open Enrollment will be effective July 1, 2023.

Open Enrollment is your opportunity to review your current benefit elections to ensure that your health insurance continues to meet the needs of you and your family.

Please review this FY24 Enrollment Guide. No actions needed, if you do not have any changes to your current elections as your elections will remain the same.

To make changes, return your forms postmarked by May 26, 2023. You are invited to attend one of the virtual Benefit Information sessions. As always, the Benefits Team within the Department of Human Resources is available to assist you.

James Parajon City Manager Janet K. Manuel Chief Human Resources Officer

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- 3 Enrolling In Your Benefits
- 4 Benefits Open House Sessions
- 5 Medical and Pharmacy Plan Overview
- 6 Consumer Directed Health Plan (CDHP)
- 7 Medical and Pharmacy Coverage
- 10 Health Savings Account
- 11 Dental Plan
- 13 Vision Plan
- 15 Additional Benefits
- 17 Frequently Asked Questions
- 18 Important Terminology
- **19** Contact Information





ENROLLING IN YOUR BENEFITS

The Open Enrollment period is from **May 8 through May 26.** During this period, retirees may make the following types of changes:

- Enroll in or cancel participation in any benefit plan.
- Change medical plan companies (Kaiser or UnitedHealthcare).
- Enroll in dental and/or vision coverage.
- Change family members to be covered and the coverage level (dependents are eligible until age 26).

Note: New dependent enrollments during this period require documentation of eligibility.

If you participate in a Kaiser or UnitedHealthcare Plan and DO NOT want to make a change, YOU DO NOT NEED TO DO ANYTHING.

Retirees in the City of Alexandria Medical Insurance Reimbursement Plan

Complete the enclosed Medical Insurance Reimbursement Plan form to satisfy the Annual Documentation Requirements for continued participation in the plan (may be submitted later if your plan year starts after July and you have not yet received the information).

Making Changes to Your Coverage

If you are considering making a change to your coverage and would like additional information about any of the plans, consider the following opportunities:

- Attend one of the Benefits Open House Sessions.
- Contact one of the members of the Benefits Team identified below.

If you decide to make a change, you must complete the Early Retiree Plan Change Form included in this package and return it via mail (preferable) to the address below so that it is postmarked by May 26.

Department of Human Resources Attn: Benefits 301 King Street, Suite 2500 Alexandria, Virginia 22314 DHR.Benefits@alexandriava.gov

For assistance in making changes, contact a member of the **Benefits Team**:

Contact	Position	Phone	Email
Jina Edwards	Acting Benefits Manager	703-746-3789	jina.edwards@alexandriava.gov
Qiana Ray	Benefits & Disability Programs Analyst	703-746-3753	qiana.ray@alexandriava.gov



BENEFITS OPEN HOUSE SESSIONS

Date	Time	Location
May 9 (Tuesday)	10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.	DCHS 4850 Mark Center Dr Alex, VA 22311
May 10 (Wednesday) (Actives & Retirees)	1:30 p.m. to 3:30 p.m.	Beatley Central Library 5005 Duke Street Alex, VA 22304
May 11 (Thursday) (Actives & Retirees)	10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.	Health Expo First Baptist Church 2932 King St Alex, VA 22302
May 15 (Monday)	10:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.	City Hall 301 King Street #2000 Alex, VA 22314
May 16 (Tuesday)	7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.	T&ES 2900 Business Center Dr Alex, VA 22314
May 23 (Tuesday)	1:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m.	Police 3600 Wheeler Ave Alex, VA 22304
May 26 (Friday)	1:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m.	Sheriff's Office 2003 Mill Road Alex, VA 22314

Fiscal Year 2024 Open Enrollment will run from May 8, 2023 (Monday) through May 26, 2023 (Friday).

MEDICAL AND PHARMACY PLAN OVERVIEW

The City offer's a choice of six medical plans with coverage for prescription drugs. You can choose from three plans administered by UnitedHealthcare and three plans from Kaiser Permanente. To select the plan that best suits your family, consider the key differences between the plans, the cost of coverage and how the plan covers services throughout the year.

Understanding how your plans work



1. Your deductible

You pay out-of-pocket for most medical and pharmacy expenses, except those with a copay, until you reach the deductible.

If you are enrolled in a CDHP, you can pay for these expenses from your Health Savings Account (HSA).



2. Your coverage

Once your deductible is met, you and the plan share the cost of covered medical and pharmacy expenses. The plan will pay a percentage of each eligible expense, and you will pay the rest.



3. Your out-of-pocket maximum

When you reach your out-of-pocket maximum, the plan pays 100% of covered medical and pharmacy expenses for the rest of the plan year. Your deductible and coinsurance apply toward the out-of-pocket maximum.

Making the most of your plan

Getting the most out of your plan also depends on how well you understand it. Keep these important tips in mind when you use your plan.

- In-network providers and pharmacies: You will always pay less if you see a provider within the medical and pharmacy network.
- Preventive care: In-network preventive care is covered at 100% (no cost to you). Preventive care is often received during an annual physical exam and includes immunizations, lab tests, screenings and other services intended to prevent illness or detect problems before you notice any symptoms.

Understanding your pharmacy coverage

- Prescription categories: Medications are categorized by cost, safety and effectiveness. These tiers also affect your coverage.
 - **Generic** A drug that's equivalent to brand-name drugs in use, dose, strength, quality and performance, but is not trademarked.
 - Preferred brand A drug with a patent and trademark name that is considered "preferred" because it's safe and effective and usually less expensive than other brand-name options.
 - Non-Preferred brand A drug with a patent and trademark name that is "not preferred" because it's usually more expensive than other generic and brand preferred options.
- Mail order pharmacy: If you take a maintenance medication on an ongoing basis for a condition like high cholesterol or high blood pressure, you can use the Mail Order Pharmacy to save on a 90-day supply.

NEW IN 2023: Reduce Out-of-Pocket Costs on Your Specialty Medications

Here's What's New

 Working with our Pharmacy Benefit Manager, CareFirst BlueCross BlueShield is offering a new program through PrudentRx to help you get specialty medications for less.

How It Works

- The PrudentRx solution is offered through PrudentRx, a company that helps manage the rising costs of specialty healthcare.
- A PrudentRx member advocate will guide you through a simple enrollment process and help you obtain non-need-based manufacturer assistance where applicable.
- Participating members will have a \$0 out-of-pocket cost on eligible specialty medications.

How to Get Started

- You'll receive outreach from a PrudentRx member advocate to help you get started.
- You can choose to opt-out at any time.
- If you have questions, please call the toll-free number on the back of your ID card.

Note: You'll receive more information before we make this plan change. In the meantime, you can continue to fill your prescriptions as usual.



CONSUMER DIRECTED HEALTH PLAN (CDHP)

Reminder to Consider the CDHP

The City offers a CDHP to employees and retirees because of the significant opportunity to save on premiums and taxes. The UnitedHealthcare CDHP and the Kaiser CDHP can help you take control of both your money and your health. It combines medical coverage with a Health Savings Account that you can use to save money to pay your health care expenses with tax-free dollars.

Advantages of This Plan

- Pay lower premiums.
- Triple tax savings: The money you contribute, growth, and withdrawal when you use the money for eligible health care expenses are all tax-free.
- You can spend the money as expenses occur or you can save it for the future.

Note: There is no City contribution to the HSA for retirees.

Important Ways This Plan is Different

- If you cover any family members, you must meet the family deductible before coverage begins for anyone.
- You pay the full cost of medical care (except preventive care) and prescription drugs until you meet your deductible.

For more information about the Health Savings Account (HSA), go to Page 10.

MEDICAL AND PHARMACY COVERAGE

UnitedHealthcare (UHC) Medical Plans

	CD	HP	Choice and Choice Plus	Choice Plus	
Medical Plan Provisions	In-Network	Out-of-Network	In-Network	Out-of-Network	
Annual Deductible (Individual/Family)	\$1,500/\$3,000**		\$400/\$800**	\$800/\$1,600**	
Out-of-Pocket Maximum (Individual/Family)	\$6,450/\$12,900	\$12,900/\$25,800	\$3,175/\$6,350	\$3,175/\$9,525	
Preventive Care	Covered at 100%	70%*	Covered at 100%	80%*	
Primary Care Office Visits for Illness/Injury	90%*	70%*	\$15 copay	80%*	
Specialist Visits/Urgent Care Center	90%*	70%*	\$25 copay	80%*	
Inpatient Hospitalization	90%*	70%*	\$500 copay (per admission)	80%*	
Emergency Room (waived if admitted)	90%*	90%*	\$150 copay	80%*	
X-Ray, Lab, and Diagnostics	90%*	70%*	Covered at 100%	80%*	
CT, PET, MRI, MRA, and Nuclear Medicine	90%*	70%*	\$100 copay	80%*	
Outpatient Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services	90%*	70%*	\$15 copay	80%*	
Transgender Benefits	Subject to applicable coinsurance	Subject to applicable coinsurance	Subject to standard copays	Subject to applicable coinsurance	
Pregnancy Services	90%*	70%	100%*	80%*	
Prenatal Visits	No charge	70%*	No charge	80%*	
Pharmacy Provisions (Provided by Care	eFirst BlueCross Blu	eShield CVS Carem	nark)		
Annual Deductible (Individual/Family)	Combined w	vith Medical	None	None	
Out-of-Pocket Maximum (Individual/Family)	Combined w	vith Medical	\$3,175/\$6,350	\$3,175/\$9,525	
Retail Pharmacy (up to a 30-day supply)				
Generic	90%*	Not applicable	\$15 copay	80%*	
Preferred Brand	80%*	Not applicable	\$30 copay	80%*	
Non-Preferred Brand	70%*	Not applicable	\$50 copay	80%*	
Mail Order Pharmacy (up to a 30-day supply)					
Generic	90%*	Not applicable	\$37.50 copay	Not applicable	
Preferred Brand	80%*	Not applicable	\$75 copay	Not applicable	
Non-Preferred Brand	70%*	Not applicable	\$125 copay	Not applicable	
90-day Retail at CVS	Same as Mail Order	Not applicable	Same as Mail Order	Not applicable	

*After deductible

**Deductible applies to Inpatient Care, Skilled Nursing Facilities, Specialty Imaging (MRIs, CT, etc.), Home Health Care, Hospice Services, Durable Medical Equipment, Sleep Studies and Orthotics.

MEDICAL AND PHARMACY COVERAGE

Kaiser Permanente Medical Plans

	CDHP	DHMO	НМО	
Medical Plan Provisions	In-Network	In-Network	Out-of-Network	
Annual Deductible (Individual/Family)	\$1,400/\$2,800**	\$400/\$800**	None	
Out-of-Pocket Maximum (Individual/Family)	\$3,000/\$6,000	\$2,200/\$6,400	\$3,500/\$9,400	
Preventive Care	Covered at 100%	Covered at 100%	Covered at 100%	
Primary Care Office Visits for Illness/Injury	90%*	\$15 copay	\$15 copay	
Specialist Visits/Urgent Care Center	90%*	\$25 copay	\$25 copay	
Inpatient Hospitalization	90%*	\$500 copay* (per admission)	\$500 copay (per admission)	
Emergency Room (waived if admitted)	90%*	\$150 copay	\$150 copay	
X-Ray, Lab, and Diagnostics	90%*	Covered at 100%	Covered at 100%	
CT, PET, MRI, MRA, and Nuclear Medicine	90%*	\$75 copay*	\$75 copay	
Outpatient Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services (Individual/Group)	90%*/90%*	\$15 copay/\$7 copay	\$15 copay/\$7 copay	
Transgender Benefits	Subject to applicable coinsurance	Subject to standard copays	Subject to standard copays	
Pregnancy Services	No charge	No charge	No charge	
Prenatal Visits	No charge, deductible does not apply	No charge, deductible does not apply	No charge	
Pharmacy Provisions				
Annual Deductible	Combined with Medical	None	None	
Out-of-Pocket Maximum (Individual/Family)	Combined with Medical	Combined with Medical	Combined with Medical	
Retail Pharmacy (up to a 30-day supply)				
Generic (Medical Center/Pharmacy)	\$20 copay/\$30 copay	\$15 copay/\$25 copay	\$15 copay/\$25 copay	
Preferred Brand (Medical Center/Pharmacy)	\$30 copay/\$50 copay	\$30 copay/\$40 copay	\$30 copay/\$40 copay	
Non-Preferred Brand (Medical Center/Pharmacy	\$45 copay/\$60 copay	\$50 copay/\$55 copay	\$50 copay/\$55 copay	
Mail Order Pharmacy (up to a 30-day supply)				
Generic/Preferred Brand/Non-Preferred Brand	2.5x Retail copay amount	2.5x Retail copay amount	2.5x Retail copay amount	
90-day Retail at CVS	Not applicable	Not applicable	Not applicable	

*After deductible

**Deductible applies to Inpatient Care, Skilled Nursing Facilities, Specialty Imaging (MRIs, CT, etc.), Home Health Care, Hospice Services, Durable Medical Equipment, Sleep Studies and Orthotics.

DHMO Deductibles

The DHMO was changed from all services being subject to the deductible, to only certain services applying to the deductible. These services are generally received from non-Kaiser providers with a referral. See below for a list of services that apply to the deductible and others where only a copay or no cost sharing is collected.

Deductible Applies		No Deductible	
 Inpatient Care Skilled Nursing Facilities Specialty Imaging (MRIs, CT, etc.) 	 Home Health Care Hospice Services Durable Medical Equipment Orthotics 	 Preventive Care (no copay) Primary Care Visit Specialist Visit Urgent Care Emergency Room 	 X-Rays, Labs, and Diagnostics (no copay) Pregnancy Services Prescription Drugs

MEDICAL AND PHARMACY COVERAGE

Monthly Medical Premiums

UnitedHealthcare (UHC) Medical Plans

CDHP	Retiree*	City Subsidy**	Total Premium
Retiree Only	\$599.75	\$260.00	\$859.75
Retiree + Spouse	\$1,487.73	\$260.00	\$1,747.73
Retiree + Child(ren)	\$1,201.60	\$260.00	\$1,461.60
Family	\$2,066.54	\$260.00	\$2,326.54
Choice	Retiree*	City Subsidy**	Total Premium
Retiree Only	\$700.66	\$260.00	\$960.66
Retiree + Spouse	\$1,637.82	\$260.00	\$1,897.82
Retiree + Child(ren)	\$1,373.12	\$260.00	\$1,633.12
Family	\$2,625.25	\$260.00	\$2,885.25
Choice Plus	Retiree*	City Subsidy**	Total Premium
Retiree Only	\$887.41	\$260.00	\$1,147.41
Retiree + Spouse	\$2,004.84	\$260.00	\$2,264.84
Retiree + Child(ren)	\$1,690.60	\$260.00	\$1,950.60
Family	\$3,182.24	\$260.00	\$3,442.24

*For retirees who are eligible for the \$260 monthly City contribution, your monthly cost is the amount in the Retiree Column for your Coverage Level and Plan in the table above.

**If you have under 25 years of service with the City and were hired after July 1, 2008, please see the Retiree Insurance Program Handbook for information about your City Subsidy (available from Human Resources).



HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT

A Health Savings Account (HSA) is a savings account that belongs to you that is paired with the **UnitedHealthcare and Kaiser CDHP**. It allows you to make tax-free contributions that you can use to pay for current and future medical expenses for you and your dependents.

START IT Contributions to an HSA are tax-free for you. (Note: There is no City contribution to the HSA for retirees.) You can open an HSA account with Optum Bank. Visit Optumbank.com and make contributions directly to your account. The HDHP costs less than other plans so the money you save on premiums can be put into your HSA. This helps you save money on taxes and gives you more flexibility and control over your health care dollars. **BUILD IT** All of the money in your HSA is yours even if you leave your job, change plans or retire. In 2023, the total of your contributions can be up to \$3,850 for individual coverage and \$7,750 for family coverage. If you are age 55 or older, you can contribute an additional \$1,000 per year. USE IT You can withdraw your money tax-free at any time, as long as you use it for qualified expenses (a list can be found on www.irs.gov). • You can also save this money and hold onto it for future eligible health care expenses. GROW IT Unused money in your HSA will roll over, earn interest and grow tax-free over time. • You decide how to use the HSA money, including whether to save it or spend it for eligible expenses. When your balance is large enough, you can invest it - tax-free.

Eligibility details

- You must be enrolled in the UnitedHealthcare CDHP or Kaiser CDHP medical plan.
- You cannot have an HSA if you are enrolled in any other health coverage or Medicare, or claimed as a dependent on someone else's tax return.



DENTAL PLAN

It's important to have regular dental exams and cleanings so problems are detected before they become painful and expensive. Keeping your teeth and gums clean and healthy will help prevent most tooth decay and is an important part of maintaining your overall health.

The City offers two dental options to non-Medicare-eligible retirees through Aetna: the Dental Maintenance Organization (DMO) Plan and the Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) Plan. Both plans provide coverage for most dental care and pay 100% of the cost of preventive care, such as routine checkups and cleanings.

DMO Plan

To be eligible for benefits under this plan, you must live in a DMO service area, and dental services must be provided by a primary care dentist selected from the network of participating DMO dentists. In addition, your primary care dentist must refer you for specialist care.

The DMO Plan also offers the following advantages:

- No deductible
- No plan maximum each year
- Lower premium cost
- Coverage for orthodontia

PPO Plan

Under this plan, you can receive care from any dentist without a referral, but savings are possible if you choose a dentist who participates in the Aetna Network because they have agreed to provide care for covered services at negotiated rates. Benefits received from a non-participating dentist are subject to charge limits.

Find a Dental Provider

Log onto <u>aetna.com</u> or call **877-238-6200**, Monday through Friday, from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m., and an Aetna Dental customer service representative can help you find a dentist.



DENTAL PLAN

Dental Plan Provisions	DMO	PPO
Annual Deductible (Amount you pay before the Plan kicks in)	None	\$50 Individual/\$150 Family
Fiscal Year Maximum (Amount the Plan will pay each year)	No maximum	\$1,000 (per individual)
Diagnostic and Preventive Services (e.g., Exams, Cleanings, and Bitewing X-rays)	Covered at 100%	Covered at 100% (no deductible)
Basic Care (e.g., Fillings and Simple Extractions)	Сорау	25%*
Major Care (e.g., Root Canals, Dentures, Crowns and Oral Surgery)	Сорау	50%*
Orthodontia	\$2,400 copay	Not covered
Do you need to choose a Primary Care Dentist?	Yes	No
Do you need a referral from your Primary Care Dentist to see a Specialist?	Yes	No
Do you need to go to a dentist that participates in the Aetna Network?	Yes	No (You can go in or out of Network)

*After deductible

Note: Diagnostic and Preventive benefits are available two times per year.

Monthly Dental Premiums

Coverage Level	DMO	PPO
Retiree Only	\$15.76	\$37.85
Retiree + Spouse	\$27.13	\$78.31
Retiree + Child(ren)	\$22.86	\$65.96
Family	\$35.69	\$103.00



VISION PLAN

The City offers the option to elect the Aetna Vision Preferred Plan. This plan provides coverage for routine eye exams and pays for most of the cost of glasses or contact lenses once each year. You can choose any licensed eye care provider; however, you always save money and generally pay less out-of-pocket if you see providers within the Aetna Vision Network. Network providers will also submit the claim for you.

Find a Vision Provider

Choose from more than 55,000+ vision offices and retailers, including popular chains like:

- LensCrafters[®]
- Pearle Vision[®]

- Target Optical[®]
- CVS Optical

Find an Eye Doctor or Vision Care Retailer Near You

You can look up independent vision care providers and retailers that participate by visiting <u>aetnavision.com</u> and clicking on **Find a Provider**.

You can also use Online Vision Partners:

- glasses.com
- Ienscrafters.com
- contactsdirect.com

More Information

Contact Aetna's Customer Care Services at 877-973-3238, Monday through, Friday from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m.

- targetoptical.com
- ray-ban.com



VISION PLAN

	РРО	
Vision Plan Provisions	Aetna Vision Network	Out-of-Network
Eye Exams	You pay \$0	Plan reimburses \$30
Lenses Single Vision Bifocal Trifocal 	You pay \$15 for all standard lenses (with standard scratch coating included)	Plan reimburses \$25 Plan reimburses \$40 Plan reimburses \$55
Eyeglass Frames	\$150 allowance, then 20% discount	Plan reimburses \$75
Contact Lenses	You pay \$40 for standard fitting; \$150 allowance, then 15% discount over allowance	Plan reimburses \$120
 Discounts Additional Pairs of Glasses Non-Covered Items (e.g., Cleaning Cloths and Contact Lens Solution) U.S. Laser Network Retinal Imaging 	Up to 40% discount 20% discount Vision correction discount Up to \$39	No discount
Frequency Eye Exams Lenses Eyeglass Frames Contact Lenses	Once every 12 months One pair of glasses once every 12 months One pair of glasses once every 12 months One order of contacts once every 12 months	

Monthly Vision Premiums

Coverage Level	PPO
Retiree Only	\$9.49
Retiree + Spouse	\$22.70
Retiree + Child(ren)	\$16.08
Family	\$26.48



ADDITIONAL BENEFITS

Second Opinion Medical Consultations

(Provided by Top Medical Specialists)

To help you and your covered family members make more informed decisions about treatment and care, the Second Opinion service offers access to convenient video and phone consultations with leading medical experts in their respective fields of medicine from top facilities nationwide. Through 2nd.MD, the Second Opinion service offers personalized consultations at no additional charge.

Program Features

- Get access to timely and flexible consultations.
- You and your covered family members can request a consultation online 24/7 or by phone between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. central time. (Nurses are available 24 hours a day for critical care cases.)
- Consultations are provided within 3 to 5 calendar days.
- Follow-up needs are coordinated.

More Information

To get started, call 866-269-3534 or visit www.2nd.MD/alexandriavagov.



ADDITIONAL BENEFITS

Jet Dental

This benefit is available to all active and retired members of the City of Alexandria. Jet Dental, a professional dental team, will come directly on-site in the City to provide comprehensive exams, preventive cleanings, and x-rays at no cost (with Aetna DMO and PPO insurance) for all our staff and any family member you would like to attend.

Note: You do not need to change your primary dentist to use Jet Dental's services if you are covered by the DMO Plan.

Dates and Times	Location
June 1, Thursday, 10 a.m. to 6 p.m.June 2, Friday, 10 a.m. to 6 p.m.	Nannie J. Lee Center, 1108 Jefferson St.

Jet Dental Services are available to all retirees with INSURANCE (Aetna DMO and PPO). Present your insurance card at the appointment. **Registration is required.** Contact **801-430-9262** or <u>hello@jetdental.com</u> to register.

Regular preventive cleanings are covered 100% by our dental insurance. Patients with periodontal gum disease may need a deeper cleaning (known as scaling and root planing), which requires a copay. Jet Dental's professional team will review any applicable costs before performing the treatment and can offer flexible payment options as needed.

Take advantage of this convenient benefit! Please contact Dr. Grace Ingram at **703-746-3794** or email <u>grace.ingram@alexandriava.gov</u> with questions.

Jet Dental Services	Dental Exam	Teeth Whitening
Duration	1 Hour	1 Hour
Cost	No cost with insurance	\$199 (Save \$200)
Treatment Provided	Cleaning. X-Rays or Exam: Jet Dental is contracted with all major private insurances, which typically cover preventative care at 100%, twice per year, making most visits "No Cost" to you.	Glo Professional: the only teeth whitening product that uses both heat and light for faster, more effective, longer-lasting whitening results without sensitivity.



FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

Information for Retirees Who Will Become 65 During This Plan Year

What if I will be Medicare-eligible this year?

All Medicare-eligible City retirees and their spouses (those 65 and older) are no longer permitted to remain in a City "Employee Plan" and MUST enroll in one of the following:

- Kaiser Medicare Advantage Plan
- UnitedHealthcare Medicare Advantage (PPO)
- City of Alexandria Insurance Reimbursement Plan. (If you choose coverage under any other health plan, eligible expenses will be reimbursed by the City for up to \$260 per month.)

Also, Aetna Dental and Vision coverage ends but can be continued under COBRA for 18 months. Aetna offers Vital Savings (a discount program for dental care, vision, hearing aids, gym memberships, and more) to Medicare-eligible retirees and their spouses.

What do I have to do?

() Three months before your 65th birthday, apply for Medicare Parts A and B.

- When you receive your Medicare A&B card, contact the Benefits Office, and they will provide you with the appropriate enrollment form.
- You will then need to complete the enrollment form and return it to the Benefits Office, along with a copy of your Medicare A&B card.
- The Benefits Office will submit your enrollment package to the appropriate provider, who will enroll you in their Plan.

What if my spouse is not Medicare-eligible? Are they eligible to remain on the "Employee Plan?"

Yes. The under 65-year-old spouse of a retiree currently insured in a City-sponsored plan may continue to receive coverage on the City-sponsored "Employee Plan" until he/she is Medicare-eligible.

What if my spouse is Medicare-eligible and I am not?

You would continue in the "Employee Plan," and your spouse can enroll in the City's Medicare Advantage program.

The City pays for (or reimburses) up to \$260 for either you or your spouse, but not both. If you and/or your spouse enroll in Kaiser or UnitedHealthcare Medicare plans, the City pays the monthly premium directly to the carrier for the oldest, eligible enrollee only. For example, if you elect the UnitedHealthcare Medicare Advantage Plan, the City will debit your account for \$128.99 per month to cover the difference between the \$388.99 premium and the \$260 maximum City reimbursement.

All premiums for the younger individual (whether Kaiser, UnitedHealthcare, or another plan of your choice) are the responsibility of the retiree and must be paid to the City via electronic funds transfer. If both you and your spouse elect a plan other than the City-sponsored plans, your total costs of up to \$260 will be reimbursed monthly.



IMPORTANT TERMINOLOGY

- Coinsurance The sharing of cost between you and the plan. For example, 80% coinsurance means the plan covers 80% of the cost of service after a deductible is met. You will be responsible for the remaining 20% of the cost.
- Consumer Directed Health Plan (CDHP) A type of health plan that gives you more control of your health care expenses. A CDHP most often pairs with a Health Savings Account (HSA) or some other tax-advantaged account.
- Copay A fixed amount (for example \$15) you pay for a covered health care service, usually when you receive the service. The amount can vary by the type of service.
- **Deductible** The amount you have to pay for covered services each year before your health plan begins to pay.
- Fiscal year maximum The maximum benefit amount paid each fiscal year for each family member enrolled in the dental plan.
- Generic drugs A drug that's equivalent to brand-name drugs in use, dose, strength, quality and performance, but is not trademarked.
- Health Savings Account (HSA) An HSA is a personal savings account for those enrolled in a High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP). You may use your HSA to pay for qualified medical expenses such as doctor's office visits, hospital care, prescription drugs, dental care and vision care. You can use the money in your HSA to pay for qualified medical expenses now, or in the future, for your expenses and those of your dependents, even if they are not covered by the HDHP.
- In-network A designated list of health care providers (doctors, dentists, etc.) with whom the insurance provider has negotiated special rates. Using in-network providers lowers the cost of services for you and the company.
- Inpatient Services provided to an individual during an overnight hospital stay.

- Mail order pharmacy Mail order pharmacies generally provide a 90-day supply of a prescription medication for the same cost as a 60-day supply at a retail pharmacy. Plus, mail order pharmacies offer the convenience of shipping directly to your door.
- Non-preferred brand drugs A drug with a patent and trademark name that is "not preferred" because it's usually more expensive than other generic and brand preferred options.
- Out-of-network Providers that are not in the plan's network and who have not negotiated discounted rates. The cost of services provided by out-of-network providers is much higher for you and the company. Higher deductibles and coinsurance will apply.
- Out-of-pocket maximum The maximum amount you and your family must pay for eligible expenses each plan year. Once your expenses reach the out-of-pocket maximum, the plan pays benefits at 100% of eligible expenses for the remainder of the year. Your annual deductible is included in your out-of-pocket maximum.
- **Outpatient** Services provided to an individual at a hospital facility without an overnight hospital stay.
- Preferred brand drugs A drug with a patent and trademark name that is considered "preferred" because it's safe and effective and usually less expensive than other brand-name options.
- Primary Care Provider (PCP) A doctor (generally a family or internal medicine practitioner or pediatrician) who provides ongoing medical care. A primary care physician treats a wide variety of health-related conditions.
- Reasonable & Customary Charges (R&C) Prevailing market rates for services provided by health care professionals within a certain area for certain procedures. Reasonable and Customary rates may apply to out-of-network charges.
- Specialist A provider who has specialized training in a particular branch of medicine (e.g., a surgeon, cardiologist or neurologist).



CONTACT INFORMATION

For more information about your benefits, questions, or to locate a network provider, contact:

Coverage	Carrier	Phone	Website/Email
Medical	UnitedHealthcare (Group #: 714332)	866-844-4864	myuhc.com
Pharmacy	CareFirst BlueCross BlueShield	800-241-3371	<u>carefirst.com/myaccount</u> <u>carefirst.com/rxgroup</u>
Medical and Pharmacy	Kaiser Permanente (Group #: 4073)	855-249-5018	<u>kp.org</u>
Medical Consultations	2nd.MD	866-269-3534	2nd.md
Health Savings Account	Optum Bank	866-234-8913	optumbank.com/support/ customer-support/contact-us. <u>html</u>
Dental	Aetna (Group #: 737479)	877-238-6200	<u>aetna.com</u>
Vision	Aetna	877-973-3238	aetnavision.com
Enrollment	Benefits Team	703-746-3789	jina.edwards@alexandriava.gov
Human Resources	Benefits Team	703-746-3777	<u>alexandriava.gov/HR</u> DHR.Benefits@alexandriava.gov



About this Guide

This benefit summary provides selected highlights of the City of Alexandria benefits program. It is not a legal document and shall not be construed as a guarantee of benefits nor of continued employment at the company. All benefit plans are governed by master policies, contracts and plan documents. Any discrepancies between any information provided through this summary and the actual terms of such policies, contracts and plan documents shall be governed by the terms of such policies, contracts and plan documents. City of Alexandria reserves the right to amend, suspend or terminate any benefit plan, in whole or in part, at any time. The authority to make such changes rests with the Plan Administrator.

